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The T.H. Dearing House originated c. 18%0 as a one-storey frame house in
Akron, Arkansas. In 1901 the house was moved about five miles to its pre-
sent site. In 19214 a second storey was added which was architecturally

in keeping with the original section. Dated photographs show that the
first storey has remained unaltered since its construction. The exterior
of the two-storey structure has remained virtuvally unchanged since 1914.

The Dearing House is a two-storey, Victorian-style residence. The ell-shape
of the two-storey section is modified by one-storey porches and projections
on the gouth and ¥Yest elevations. The basic floor plan has a central hall
with four rooms on the South and two rooms on the north. The four room,
second-storey addition lies above the east rooms.

The house is sheathed in narrow clapboard with narrow vertical boards at
each corner and a wide baseboard over the upper portion of the stone found-
ation. Windows on the first storey are long and narrow with four-light
double~-hung sashes and a simple cornice. Upstairs windows are two-light
sash with cornices identical to the lower -window Cornices.

The most interesting features of the house are the open porches on the east
{front) and south elevations. Decorative woodwork cut in intricate pat~
terns gives the porches their distinctive appearance. Trim on the two
firgt-storey porches is identical. Square posts with a turned section in
the niddle divide the porches into bays. Handrails rest above jigsaw-cut
balusters. Brackets on the porch posts are cuk in a sunburst-like pat-
tern and terminate in miniature pendants. Spindles. in each porch bay are
set between a scroll pattern above and a serrated pattern beneath. Though
similar, the second-storey porch is less intricately trimmed than the
first-storey porches.

Other interesting features include the two-storey bay on the facade and
the patterned woodwork set into the east and southeast gable ends. The
multi-gable roof is capped with cresting. '

Because it has been continually occupied by mewmbers of the family, the
Dearing House has been well cared for and remains in excellent condition.
The house rests on & spacious tree-shaded site, an appropriate setting
for the community's most architecturally interesting structure.,
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In 1854 a post office was established at Big Bottom in Independence County,
Arkansas. As a commercial port on the White River and a stagecoach stop
between Jacksonport and Batesville, the community grew into a small but rela-
tively important commercial center. Its name was later changed to Akron.

e S—— e tg—

¥hen the railroad passed north of Akron through the Newark community, the
decline of the earlier settlement began. After reaching its peak population
in the 1880's the community began to diminish in size and commercial impor-
tance, Around the turn of the century several fires destroyed most of its :
husiness district, thus hastening Akron's demise.

Today the only physical remains at the site of the old Akron community con-
sist of the cemetery, which overlooks the White River; however, one structure
originally located in Akron, but since moved, is still standing. The T.H.
Dearing House, built in Akron about 1890, was moved to Newark in 1901. This
house symbolizes the general movement from river ports to railrocad depots
which occurred often in late nineteenth-century Arkansas. Moreover, the
Dearing House is tangible evidence of Newark's ties to Akron.

The Dearing House was built by Thomas Hindman Dearing as a residence for his
large family. Though the exact construction date is not knovm, descendants
of the builder concur that it was probably constructed about 1820. In 1901
Dearing moved both his family and his house to the nearby community of Newark.

Dearing was a farmer who was active in Independence County politics. From 1894 to
1898 he served as circuit clerk for Independence County, and in 1911 he was
appointed sergeant-at—arms for Arkansas’® 38th General Assembly. The house
he built for his eight children is now owned by his youngest daughter, Mrs.
Lena Dearing Shipman.

o
The Dearing House is a white-frame, Victorian-style structure which, in 1914,
was enlarged by the addition of a second storey. Several features give the
house its distinctive appearance;these include the ornately trimmed porches
on the east and south elevations, a two-storey bay on the east facade, metal
cresting on the roof and decorative woodwork set into the gable ends. Besides
being the most architecturally significant structure in the Hewark community,
the Dearing House is also one of the oldest still standing.

Architecturally, the Dearing House is one of the most important Victorian-
style structures in Independence County. Built by a farmer and politician,
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the house typifies the tastes of such a man at the turn of the centuxy.
Moving the house from a declining to a growing community represented the

shift in population brought about by the railroad.

The Dearing House, as

the last surviving structure from 01d Akron, is a contimmal reminder of

Newark's heritage from the older community.
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